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• Greed in relationship

• Hypocrisy in religious beliefs

• Believe Jesus but burn churches

• Do corruption even in charity

• Say prayers for show-offs

• Do Hajj & Umras on public funds

• Sermons of Murder on Mimbers

• Hatred for each other’s sects

• Feel pride in using fake degrees

• Chant slogans for brief-case leaders

• Die for politicians living abroad

• Throwing acids on women faces

AND yet complaining that RULERS are not good –

Only Pakistanis can afford to behave like that.
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It’s me; my Lord!

INAM R SEHRI



• Born in Lyallpur (Pakistan) in April 1948

• First Degree from Government College Lyallpur (1969)

• Studied at Government College Lahore & got first Master’s Degree from Punjab University Lahore (1971);

• Attachment with AJK Education Service (1973-1976)

• Central Superior Services (CSS) Exam passed (batch 1975)

• Civil Service Academy Lahore (joined 1976)

• National Police Academy Islamabad (joined 1977)

• LLB from BUZ University Multan (1981)

• Master’s Degree from Exeter University of UK (1990)

• Regular Police Service: District Admin, Police College, National Police Academy, the Intelligence Bureau (IB), Federal Investigation Agency (FIA) [1977-1998] then migrated to the UK permanently.

A part-script copied from the earlier volumes:

Just spent a normal routine life; with hundreds of mentionable memoirs allegedly of bravery & glamour as every uniformed officer keeps, some times to smile at and next moment to repent upon but taking it just normal except one or two spills.

During my tenure at IB HQ Islamabad I got chance to peep into the elite civil and military leadership of Pakistan then existing in governmental dossiers and database.

During my stay at FIA I was assigned to conduct special enquiries & investigations into some acutely sensitive matters like Motorway Scandal, sudden expansion and build-up of Sharif family’s industrial empire, Sharif’s accounts in foreign countries; Alleged Financial Corruptions in Pakistan’s Embassies in Far-Eastern Countries; Shahnawaz Bhutto’s murder in Cannes (France); Land Scandals of CDA’s Estate Directorate; Ittefaq Foundry’s ‘custom duty on scrap’ scam, Hudaibya Engineering & Hudaibya Paper Mills enquiries, Bhindara’s Murree Brewery and tens more cases like that.

[Through these words I want to keep it on record that during the course of the above mentioned, (and also which cannot be mentioned due to space limits) investigations or enquiries, the then Prime Minister Benazir Bhutto, or [late] Gen Naseerullah Babar the then Federal Interior Minister, or G Asghar Malik the then DG FIA, had never ever issued direct instructions or implicit directions or wished me to distort facts or to go malafide for orchestrating a political edge or other intangible gains.

Hats off to all of them!]

I should feel proud that veracity and truthfulness of none of my enquiry or investigation could be challenged or proved false in NAB or Special Courts; yes, most of them were used to avail political compromises by Gen Musharraf’s government.

That’s enough, my dear countrymen.
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An Urge – An Appeal

‘CHEHRAY NAHIN NIZAM KO BADLO’:

[CHANGE THE SYSTEM NOT FACES]

The below essay was published in media in August 2013 –

but it is correct even after two years

In Pakistan two years are not enough to give you true smiles

Even 20 years are not sufficient – think for 200 years

Once, Pakistan’s Federal Interior Minister Nisar Ali Khan, in his press conference made a hint to constitute a Joint Intelligence Body to deal with the terrorism menace effectively. Good job - but what the new body will perform. Some intelligence directorates would work together to share the information collected about the terrorists, suicide bombers and hardened criminals etc. Consider the next step now.

The intelligence would be passed on to the Rangers or Police or FC or BC or FIA or alike department to conduct raids, arrest the terrorists with recovery of their suicidal jackets, rocket launchers, grenades, Kalashnikovs and bags of bullets. Consider the next step now.

The police would take arrested persons on remand; send them to judicial lock-ups, then to jails; the police case would remain under investigation for months and years and the arrested lot would be released on bail by the respective courts due to LACK OF EVIDENCE or FAULTY EVIDENCE.

The police mostly consider it better to sell out the culprits for little money or fear of TERRORIST GROUP behind them or on instructions of their political bosses. If police stands, the courts would let them off again due to broken EVIDENCE.

We all Pakistanis, as a nation, are fond of STATUS QUO. We are all DISCUSSION loving people; see our TV live programs, news editorial pages and even our Senate, National & Provincial Assemblies – all are the discussions and debating FORUMS to keep that status quo in place.

Since the last 14 years, how many terrorist events and suicide bombings have been reported; thousands of people died, burnt or mutilated – but NOT A SINGLE CONVICTION.

Reasons – police officer’s evidence is NOT ADMISSIBLE. There may be more countries like India or BD where this 160 years old law prevails but there the terrorism menace is negligible. The Pakistani magistrate is made to record statement under Sec 164 CrPC but even then 99.99% cases end up in zero convictions.

Not a SINGLE MALE has been convicted under Haddood Laws since 1979; tens of women have been ‘sangsarred’ [death by stoning].

CCTV recordings, camera photographs, TV footages, DNA tests, medical opinions, forensic reports, finger prints AND all expert analysis are considered SECONDRY EVIDENCE in Pakistani laws – is there any other country in the world which keeps such nasty law.

The same drama is being repeated daily and in all places of Pakistan where the terrorist attack occurs. Net result comes that police, Rangers, FIA, IB, ISI and other concerned departments may be wrong but MORE FAULT LIES WITH LAW & COURTS.

See the following media reports [covering very limited time] for a while:

On 12th March 2013; the media, both print and electronic, told the nation that Sindh Rangers apprehended more than 460 suspects and recovered hundreds of weapons by conducting 15 major operations in Karachi and 96 raids during the past three months.

Ranger’s Col Shafiq Niazi said - those taken into custody included 49 major targeted killers besides extortionists affiliated with various proscribed outfits as well as political parties. During the operations against criminals; 7 of the Ranger’s men had been martyred and 14 wounded.

On 17th June 2013; the Rawalpindi police saved the city from a major terrorist attack by seizing an explosives laden car and nabbing two terrorists. SSP Sikandar Hayat informed the media that the police stopped a Toyota Corolla at the Naseerabad picket. The two young men in the car did not stop and tried to speedily exit the scene. The police then intercepted them successfully, recovering two suicide jackets from their car’s CNG cylinder, 20 bombs, 4 Kalashnikovs, 4 pistols and a huge cache of bullets from them. The criminals were arrested and investigated; the terrorists confessed during preliminary questioning that they belonged to Miranshah and were planning on targeting Rawalpindi. They were shifted to an undisclosed location by the police.

On 5th July 2013; eleven suspects, including a suicide bomber, were arrested during several hours search operation in Karachi’s Manghopir area by Rangers and police. During the raid, Rangers officers seized a huge amount of arms, a few motorcycles, a monitor, mobile phones and threatening pamphlets. According to initial investigations, the suicide bomber had reached Karachi from North Waziristan a day before.

Around 1,500 Rangers officers took part in that operation, which was conducted on a tip off.

On 2nd August 2013; Khyber PK’s Lakki PS held two men Gul Wahab and Imranullah on main bus stand in Lakki city and recovered a Kalashnikov, a Kalikow and 129 bullets from them. Separately, another police party of Tajori PS arrested a man Amanullah in Adamzai market and seized a Kalashnikov rifle and 20 rounds from him. Police registered separate cases against the arrested persons under relevant section of law.

What else Pakistanis expect from their police or Rangers. What else the courts need to get convinced. In the above cases Police or Ranger’s evidence would not be accepted under Pakistani LAW; so from where the INDEPENDENT WITNESSES would come up. Courts are weak – Laws are weak. After a week, all were bailed out Scot free. The terrorists and miscreants know it so the whole Pakistan is suffering since twenty years and would continue to suffer; one can apprehend.

The Assemblies only convene their sessions for friendly discussions or question - answers; no law making ever done in right directions; long policy statements and media briefings – nothing beyond.

Former FIA’s Chief, Tariq Khosa, in his essay of 6th August 2013 in print media have suggested following measures.

• Inter-agency intelligence coordination between the federal and provincial institutions should be notified with well-defined terms of reference.

• A counter-terrorism joint task force must be launched with selected ones from the Anti-Terrorism Force of the police and SSG of the military.

• Joint Interrogation Teams (JIT) should be notified by the home department.

• Provincial monitoring committee should be constituted under the law ministers.

• All militants and undertrial accused should be held in high-security prisons.

BUT IN ADDITION the Pakistani nation needs to standup for SUMMARY JUSTICE. The 173 years old Police Act, 160 years old PPC, CrPC, Evidence Act [though little reformed in Gen Zia’s times negatively] have to go now. The British had given you these laws but are not practised even in their own territories – abandoned since long.

PML(N) should have considered the new legislation in their first parliamentary session. 19th century evidence act and court procedures, as we still see in Pakistan would not work now. See how many terrorist cases have been worked out or gone through successful trials in our courts; if a single mass killer has been punished during the last 14 years - NO. The people arrested and jailed are then ‘facilitated’ to flee away through jail breaks - see the Bannu & DIK jail events.

How Iran, Saudi Arabia, UK or other developed states have dealt with such menace. Simply that if a killer is identified, he is taken through summary trial procedures [no gimmicks of 150 years old evidence requirements like in Pakistan – waiting for the eye witnesses], and next week he is hanged in the main square. Whether Islamic Laws or English Laws; both equally effective. Judge has to convince himself and decide about the culprit - not the procedural lacunas.

What a mockery of Pakistani social values; daily TV news tell that gangs with illicit arms captured, bomb making devices recovered but the TV video recording is not accepted in court. CCTV footage is there but no punishments; what else a judge should need to deliver justice.

Why all this fuss - Change the laws please. Shelve the Pakistani evidence act and court’s procedural code. Select the TOP quality judges in all respects; law knowing & God fearing with courageous backgrounds [even one in a district will be enough]; let them accept all evidence what appeals them to decide, no flaws in policeman’s arrest process or recording statements etc should be able to take away the killer free.

Give those judges new law to decide through summary procedures. Where there is TV or CCTV footage, should be used to send the killer to gallows straightaway. Appeal should be decided in three days and execution in a week in open. There are more than 3000 mercy petitions with the Presidency, some pending decisions since 15 years - is it justice and is it Islamic Republic by the way?

Radical changes are needed now; otherwise let the killings be on. They are separatists, nationalists, terrorists or sectarian activists or what else - when someone knows that if ‘I kill the other, I’ll be immediately taken to gallows [when arrested]’ - the things will go different.

Since long killers in Pakistan know that the courts and laws are favouring them, and lawyers are there to save them through EVIDENCE gimmicks - the appeals - then mercy petitions - till then they would otherwise be out through jail breaks.

Books can be written and months can be consumed on this debate but the only solution left that we have to go 180 angle to the famous maxim [that ‘don’t punish an innocent - 1000s actuals can be freed under benefits of doubt’]. But think; TV & CCTV footage and camera eyes do not leave any doubt. Be radical - change the laws and procedures please; much will be OK.

Families of dying officers from Police and Rangers also demand JUSTICE; it should not only be the prerogative of criminals whom the courts set free daily under this maxim.

The Pakistani nation should rise up now for ‘CHEHRAY NAHIN NIZAM KO BADLO’ – where is Imran Khan’s high trumpeted shouts for INSAF. He can at least bring radical changes on above lines in his Khyber PK through provincial legislation.

The Supreme Court has already settled in its own verdict cited as 2012 SCMR 1258, in these words, “Justice at no cost and at no stage should be allowed to fall prey to the procedural technicalities, which may be ignored if they tend to create hurdle in the way of justice”. But Hathi ke dant khane ke aur Dikhane ke aur.

SC itself is confined to ‘Contempt Notices’, it should have raised itself high. In general we follow the English Law, but in that originating country [UK], the last Contempt case was heard in 1946 [for details Judges & Generals in Pakistan Vol -I & Vol -II are referred]

MNAs & MPAs are there only to deal with RRPs and Nandipurs. But the SC should have worked out summary procedures and summary courts to deal with the above exemplified cases of Rangers raids. If you do not believe police – OK; believe Rangers, TV eyes & media at least; the persons arrested with illicit lethal arms should have been hanged till now.

Have a sweet dish after the meal – it is going to be another sunset in Pakistan now.

{published at pkhope.com on 16th August 2013}

Roedad Khan had also agreed, more or less, [‘the News’ dated 12th December 2013 is referred] through an illustration that:

‘………one Marshall Court in the US. Marshall made the Supreme Court ‘a driving force’ for change. Marshall employed the law as a means to attain the political and economic ends that the people favoured. The judge was to use his power to mould the law in accordance with the needs of the American people. Marshall moulded his decisions to accord with the “felt necessities of the time”. For Marshall, the constitution, like the law, was a tool to serve the needs of the nation.’

Will some judge rise from Pakistani soils to do the same like job [given the parliament is impotent].

“Change happens by listening and then starting a dialogue with the people who are doing something you don’t believe is right.” - Jane Goodall

…..So the goal should be to stay open-minded, be comfortable with being wrong. Broaden your horizon with new areas of interest. It is more beneficial to you to open your mind and consider a different perspective.

Abraham Lincoln said: “I walk slowly, but I never walk backward.” So, please keep moving forward.

Inam R Sehri

12th November 2015


		
Scenario 91

For The Conspiracy Killers

This chapter is to pay respects, regards and tribute to Pakistan’s Army Chief Gen Raheel Sharif who is fighting at various internal and external sectors with an undying determination, audacity and fortitude – keeping the visionary nationalist approach in sight.

Gen Raheel Sharif, with the help of his commanders’ team, successfully restrained the terrorists of all sorts including political, criminal, economic and sectarian etc, where the civil governments in succession had miserably failed to deliver; rather the political elite remained implied partners to the menace.

This chapter is here to salute Gen Raheel Sharif that how he tackled the dissident voices within the armed forces – to which phenomenon the India and US, in the garb of friendship, tried to label as ‘mutiny in Pak-Army’ during the previous decade.

Gen Raheel Sharif’s effective leadership coupled with the forces’ morale helped the establishment to redress those orthodox dissenting elements from ranks and files of the Pakistan Army.

This chapter would give an insight to the historians to keep their records straight while pondering that how some media persons’ misconception or misuse of their narrative abilities can harm the state – half truth is more dangerous, we all know.

The ending lines of this chapter contains briefs of an Indian Intelligence columnist Vinod Sharma, published in Indian media – directly admitting that ISI is, and has been, the most professional, proficient and nationalistic corps of the Pakistan Army.

[DEADLY] INTERVIEWS OF 2011:

On 9th October 2009, a high-level meeting at the Presidency of Islamabad between Pakistan’s civil and military leadership endorsed a military operation against the Pakistani Taliban and al-Qaeda in the South Waziristan tribal area.

At the same time, al-Qaeda was seriously implementing its game plan against its main targets, the United States and its ally Pakistan; in that context the militant activity in Pakistan had expanded manifolds.

A week earlier, a car loaded with explosives had rammed into the compound wall of the Indian Embassy in Kabul, killing at least 17 people. Just three days after that Kabul episode, the militants staged a daring attack on the Pak-Army’s GHQ in Rawalpindi. Two days after, a suicide bomber detonated a bomb in market town in the Swat Valley region, killing 41 people and injuring 45 others – chaos all around.

Pakistan was at critical juncture, with around 60,000 armed troops deployed in South Waziristan to flush out the Pakistan Tehrik e Taliban (TTP), al-Qaeda and their allies from the Pakistani tribal areas.

ILYAS KASHMIRI WANTED – DEAD OR ALIVE:

During the same tense times, an al-Qaeda related leader Ilyas Kashmiri, released much threatening messages to Pakistani military through certain media members. It was because during the past few months, certain leading figures of the TTP had been killed in drone attacks including Osama al-Kini, a Kenyan national and Chief of al-Qaeda’s External Operations; Khalid Habib, the Commander of the Lashkar al-Zil [al-Qaeda’s fighting force]; Tahir Yuldashev, an Uzbek leader of al-Qaeda; TTP leader Baitullah Mehsud, and many more. A little background of Ilyas Kashmiri:

On 26th February 2000, Ilyas had conducted a guerrilla operation against the Indian army in Nakyal [AJ&K] sector after crossing the LoC with 25 fighters of 313 Brigade. [It was retaliation to an Indian attack in which they had killed 14 civilians a day earlier] They kidnapped an Indian army officer who was later beheaded - his head was paraded in the bazaars of Kotli back in Azad Jammu & Kashmir [AJ&K].

Ilyas Kashmiri, was a fighter since Soviet occupation of Afghanistan. He learnt his military skills from those turbulent days while roaming around in the Pak-Afghan border regions but later engaged in militant activities in Kashmir after the Afghan war. He was a member of Harkat-ul-Jihad-al-Islami (HuJI) but disagreements with its leader Qari Saifullah Akhtar in 1990s led Kashmiri to establish his own new unit [within HuJI] known as the 313 Brigade.

During the mid-1990s, Kashmiri was near Poonch when he was seized by the Indian Army and sent to prison, where he spent two years before escaping and returning to Pakistan.

Ilyas Kashmiri was named and arrested in late 2003 in an attempt to assassinate President Gen Musharraf but was released in February 2004. Until the 2007 he apparently did little, but later returned to the 313 Brigade which, till then, had been closely tied to al-Qaeda. Kashmiri rebuilt its strength while collaborating with the Taliban and he moved to Waziristan along with his personnel from his Kotli (Kashmir) training camp. Till then he was in regular contact with al Qaeda high command through Mustafa Abu al Yazid....

Ilyas Kashmiri was also named in 2008 Mumbai attacks, the 2010 Pune bombing, the assassination of Benazir Bhutto and the killing of Ameer Faisal Alavi. Kashmiri was also once named behind a 2008 plan to assassinate Gen Kayani while the General stepped out of his car during daily visits to a gym; however, the al-Qaeda leadership had rejected the claim. In early 2010, Kashmiri became the new leader of al-Qaeda’s Lashkar al Zil, [Shadow Army], following the death of its former leader Abdullah Said al Libi by an American drone.

On 6th October 2009, Ilyas Kashmiri, the Al Qaeda Commander, called a media person named Saleem Shehzad at Mir Ali in North Waziristan. Next day he reached there after travelling for seven hours, where he was kept confined for two days and then briefed that:

“The commander [Ilyas Kashmiri] is alive; the news of his death in a drone attack [on 7th & 14th September] was not true.”

Ilyas Kashmiri had himself once divulged that in 1994, he launched the al-Hadid operation in the Indian capital, New Delhi, to get some of his jihadi comrades released. His group of 25 people included Sheikh Omar Saeed [named for abduction of US reporter Daniel Pearl in Karachi in 2002] as his deputy.

The group abducted several foreigners, including American, Israeli and British tourists and took them to Ghaziabad near Delhi. They then demanded that the Indian authorities should release their colleagues, but instead they attacked the hideout. Sheikh Omar was injured and arrested. Ilyas escaped unhurt and Omar was later released in a swap for the passengers of a hijacked Indian aircraft.

In reply to a question about the then upcoming South Waziristan operation [June – October 2009], Ilyas Kashmiri had said:

‘Those who planned this battle actually aimed to bring the world’s biggest Satan [US] and its allies into this trap and swamp [Afghanistan]. Afghanistan is a unique place in the world where the hunter has all sorts of traps to choose from.

It might be deserts, rivers, mountains and the urban centres as well. This was the thinking of the planners of this war who were sick and tired of the great Satan’s global intrigues and they aimed for its demise to make this world a place of peace and justice.

This was the illusion on which a great alliance of world powers came to Afghanistan, but due to their misplaced conceptions they gradually became trapped in Afghanistan.

Today, they have lost the war in Afghanistan. Now, when they realized their defeat, they developed an emphasis that this entire battle is being fought from outside; from the two Waziristans. To me, this military thesis is an illusion; a daydream to create reactions and counter - reactions.’

Why this all bloodshed?

“Because the entire game was in the hands of USA; organs like the UN and countries like India and Israel were simply the extension of its resources. The defeat of American global hegemony is a must if I want the liberation of my homeland Kashmir, and therefore it provided the reasoning for my presence in this war theatre.

The RAW [India’s Research and Analysis Wing] has detachment command centres in the Afghan provinces of Kunar, Jalalabad, Khost, Argun, Helmand and Kandahar. The cover operations are road construction companies.

For instance, the road construction contract from Khost city to the Tanai tribe area is handled by a contractor who is actually a current Indian army colonel. In Gardez, telecommunication companies are the cover for Indian intelligence operations. Mostly, their men operate with Muslim names, but actually the employees are Hindus.”

Answering a question that ‘what impressed you to join al-Qaeda’; Ilyas Kashmiri had replied that:

‘We were both victims of the same tyrant. Today, the entire Muslim world is sick of Americans and that’s why they are agreeing with Mullah Omar or Sheikh Osama.’

When asked that if it was so then why you were against the Pakistani military establishment; to which Ilyas comprehended:

“Pakistan is my beloved country and the people who live there are our brothers, sisters and relatives. I cannot even think of going against its interests. It was never the Pakistan army that was against me, but certain elements who branded me as an enemy to cover up their weaknesses and to appease their masters.”

On 13th February 2010 at 7:15 pm, a bomb exploded at the German Bakery in Pune town of Maharashtra, India; 17 people were killed and 60 injured including an Italian woman, two Sudanese and one Iranian student. The German Bakery was located near the Jewish Chabad House and the Osho ashram, an international meditation resort in Pune. The ashram and the bakery were frequently visited by foreigners, tourists and locals alike. It was then believed that Ilyas Kashmiri had planned it or controlled it while sitting back – but during investigations his name had not surfaced up.

Next day, the Indian Home Minister stated that responsibility for the blast had not yet been determined, but that Indian authorities were making attempts to interview David Headley, accused of involvement with terrorism who was then undergoing trial in the United States.

On 18 April 2013, a Pune court awarded death sentence to one Indian Mujahideen operative Himayat Baig, for his involvement in the blasts.

ILYAS DECLARED DEAD:

On 3rd June 2011, Ilyas Kashmiri, the head of al-Qaeda’s Operation Wing, was killed in a drone attack in Pakistan’s FATA, the most wanted man in the Pak-Afghan region those days. Aged 46, born at village Samahni of Bhimber AJK, the Commander of its 313 Brigade of the banned Harkat ul Jihad e Islami [HuJI], was reportedly killed in a drone attack near Wana in the South Waziristan Agency at Pak-Afghan border, along with his nine companions leaving three seriously injured.

Ilyas Kashmiri’s legendary 313 Brigade had grown into the most powerful group in South Asia and its network was once strongly knitted in Afghanistan, Pakistan, Kashmir, India, Nepal and Bangladesh. According to CIA, the footprints of 313 Brigade were also seen in Europe and other countries too. On 31st August 2011, Asia Times Online reported that a well known Taliban commander named Shah Sahib had replaced Kashmiri as commander of the Brigade 313.

Despite what some reports claimed, Ilyas was never a part of Pakistan’s SSG unit, nor even of the army. Nearly 30 years ago when he joined the Afghan jihad against the Soviets from the platform of the HuJI, he developed expertise in guerrilla warfare and explosives.

This highly trained militant had twice been reported killed previously, on 7th & 14th September 2009. Kashmiri was reported killed along with Hanifullah Janikhel and Kaleemullah in Machikhel, North Waziristan on 7th September 2009 when they were hit by a drone attack. However, in mid-October Kashmiri was reported to have survived the air strike and granted an interview to Saleem Shahzad. He was outside for a while when the house he was staying at was hit by drone thus he survived.

Reportedly, he was also wanted in connection with a number of major terrorist attacks in Pakistan and India, including an attack on Mumbai on 26th November 2008 in which 163 people were killed.

Ilyas Kashmiri was the mastermind of the barefaced attack on the naval air base in Karachi on 22nd May 2011. Kashmiri, the only known Pakistani militant to have raised high into al-Qaeda’s ranks, was appointed ‘Acting Chairman’ by Saif Al Adel, the Egyptian Chief Military Strategist of al-Qaeda and Deputy of Osama bin Laden.

Kashmiri, an expert in guerrilla warfare, had lost a finger and an eye during the fight against the Soviet Union in Afghanistan in the 1980s. He was once a hero of the Kashmir movement, but when Islamabad, under pressure from the United States, wound down operations in Kashmir, he went underground.

He had left the Kashmir region in 2005 after his second release from detention and he headed for North Waziristan. He had previously been arrested by Indian forces, but he broke out of jail and escaped. He was then detained by the ISI as the suspected mastermind of an attack on President Gen Musharraf [in 2003] but was cleared and released.

The ISI then picked up Ilyas again in 2005 after he refused to close down his operations in Kashmir. Kashmiri was declared as ‘most dangerous’ due to his training skills and commando expertise; the US had placed a bounty of US$5 million on his head.

His death news was aired on all private Pakistani channels; Express TV & Sama TV released special features on him. Federal Interior Minister Rehman Malik told the media: ‘All ground intelligence shows that he is dead; 98% chance he is dead.’

On 27th October 2009, the US Department of Justice declared Ilyas Kashmiri as a conspirator with whom an American citizen from Chicago named David Headley [later arrested on terrorism related charges] reportedly had deep contacts.

The US government noted that Kashimiri had issued a statement the same month that he was alive and working with al Qaeda. He was in regular contact with Headley for some time. Headley was reportedly distraught at news of Kashmiri’s death, but after receiving confirmation that he was still alive, set off for Pakistan, at which time he was arrested by the FBI.

Kashmiri was officially indicted on two counts, for “conspiracy to murder and maim against the newspaper Jyllands - Posten and conspiracy to provide material support to terrorism in Denmark”. During court testimony on 31st May 2011, Headley indicated that he had conducted preliminary research for Kashmiri in a plot targeting Robert J Stevens, the CEO of Lockheed - Martin and the defence contractor.

On 6th August 2010 the United States labelled Kashmiri a “Specially Designated Global Terrorist” while the United Nations added him and his group HUJI to its blacklist established under UN Security Council Resolution 1267. The label allowed the United States to freeze any of his assets in US jurisdiction and to “prohibit US persons from engaging in any transactions with him.” The UN resolution required UN member states to freeze assets, ban travel and ban the sale of arms to Kashmiri and HUJI by or through any means.

However, on 10th May 2012, the United Nations Security Council officially labelled Kashmiri as “reportedly deceased” on the Al Qaeda Sanctions list and made it clear that they would treat him as dead until it could be proven otherwise.

MUNIZAE’S DREADFUL INTERVIEW:

One PAUL JAY, the Senior Editor of ‘the Real News Network’ at Washington had once approached veteran TV reporter of Pakistan media named Munizae Jahangir; the very next day when the news about one Saleem Shahzad’s death reached the outer world. Paul Jay’s Interview with Munizae Jahangir dated 1st June 2011 is placed here verbatim:

PAUL JAY: On Tuesday in Pakistan, the journalist Syed Saleem Shahzad was brutally murdered in Islamabad. Saleem was the bureau chief for Asia Times Online. He was also an often contributor to The Real News Network. Now joining us from Pakistan talk about the murder of Saleem Shahzad is Munizae Jahangir. Munizae is a journalist and a host of a show on Express Media Group Television, which is the second largest television network, English network, in Pakistan. Thanks for joining us, Munizae.

MUNIZAE JAHANGIR: Thank you for having me.

JAY: So, first of all, what do we know about what happened?

MUNIZAE: Well, what we do know is that Saleem Shahzad was working on certain stories which were related to al-Qaeda and al-Qaeda’s involvement with the army. Now, he had written several stories on al-Qaeda, one of them being on al-Qaeda number two Mullah Baradar, who was taken into custody in Karachi by the army.

He wrote a story saying that Mullah Baradar was taken into custody by the Pakistan army so that he could be offered for negotiations with the Americans. After that, apparently, he was called in by the ISI, the intelligence agency of Pakistan, the secret intelligence, and he was questioned, after which he wrote a long email to Human Rights Watch saying that he is being threatened by the ISI.

And he said that several times and confided several times to the HRW, Human Rights Watch, here in Pakistan, to the local representative here in Pakistan. And he said that if I disappear or something happens to me, please release an email. So he actually did send out an email saying that his life was under threat.

Recently there was an attack on PNS Mehran early in May, the Navy attack on PNS Mehran and — in Karachi. He wrote a story saying that basically there were people within the Navy who were in some ways — I wouldn’t say collusion, but they were arrested by the Navy for having some links with al-Qaeda, after which al-Qaeda reacted and they launched an attack on PNS Mehran airbase.

That was the first part of his story. The second part of his story was going to be published.

Meanwhile, he was on his way to a local TV station when he went missing. His family went and lodged an FIR. They found his car close to Islamabad with his ID card and an ID card of another person. They found his body floating in the river yesterday. And there was this organization, nongovernmental organization that actually found the body and buried it, because nobody came forward to claim it.

So today, when his photograph started appearing on television, they realized that this was the man that people are looking for, Saleem Shahzad. And that’s when his family was brought to identify the body.

JAY: Now, there’s been some kind of report that the ISI had actually picked him up and that Human Rights Watch in Pakistan had received some information from them. What is that?

MUNIZAE: Yes, absolutely. When he was picked up, the Human Rights Watch received a call from his wife. And he had told his wife that if I go missing, the first person that you must call is the local representative of the Human Rights Watch here in Pakistan, called Ali Dayan Hassan, which his wife did.

And that’s when Ali Dayan Hassan remembered that he had written him an email saying that in case I go missing or something happens to me, please release the email. And in that email he suggested that he had been called in by the ISI many times for questioning on the stories that he was writing. There were also suggestions that he had been picked up by the ISI.

Now, Saleem Shahzad has also had a history. He was actually kidnapped by the Taliban back in 2006, and some reports suggested he was taken to Helmand. So he was somebody who knew the whereabouts of the Taliban; how the network worked inside out. We don’t know what happened after he was kidnapped. You know, this is all very murky. But he was a journalist who was working on these kinds of stories.

JAY: Now, was he the only one doing this kind of reporting? Or were other people doing similar things?

MUNIZAE: Well, there were certainly a lot of suggestions. I, in fact, in my own show, raised the question of whether there was a split within the army, simply because chief of army staff General Kayani had already admitted to the Americans that they need to do some soul-searching, that they need some introspection, that they need to clean their own house, quote-unquote.

And the Americans had suggested that it is a time--in fact, we heard from Admiral Michael Mullen just yesterday saying that we’ve had very frank discussions with the Pakistan army, that they realize that they will have to do some soul-searching that they will have to do introspection that they will have to clean out their own house.

So these are statements that were coming suggesting that there was in fact a split in the army. It was very clear that there was an insider in the army who had actually squealed and had given the kind of information that had been given on the PNS Mehran airbase, because the attackers knew exactly where to go and they were very focused in their attack.

We also saw the bin Laden attack. And, you know, if you go to Abbottabad, where bin Laden was found, it’s a garrison town. There are training centres, army training centres all around. And we had one of our former DG ISI, General Ziauddin, saying that at the time of Musharraf, there were several raids made in Abbottabad.

In fact, in January, early January of this year [2011], there was a senior al-Qaeda leader who was picked up from — Umar Patek, who was picked up from Abbottabad. And, in fact, he was trying to get a meeting with bin Laden. So they obviously knew that there was some kind of activity in Abbottabad, where bin Laden was eventually discovered and shot down.

There were indications that there were people who were going there — that Abbottabad was a town where high-level al-Qaeda leaders would go [snip] baffling that the Pakistan army did not really find bin Laden.

Several news reports suggest that in fact General Kayani said that I find it very strange also, it also came as a rude shock to me that bin Laden was found in Abbottabad.

JAY: Now, what Saleem had told us in the interview he did with The Real News just a few days before he was killed was that there was this serious splits developing in the Pakistan military, that after the killing of bin Laden, that the Americans had greatly increased their pressure on the Pakistan military to collaborate with the US, and that this was driving a wedge in the Pakistan military, people who were more sympathetic to the Taliban or al-Qaeda or Islamist ideology. Do you think that’s true? And what are the signs of that?

MUNIZAE: Well, there are certainly signs of it, because after bin Laden was shot down, the first thing that the chief of army staff, General Ashfaq Parvez Kayani, did, that he went on a kind of a tour into all the garrison towns that he has, meeting all his troops, as to say, and, you know, having frank discussions with him.

And we saw one of the reports quoting him saying that, you know, the morale of the troops is down, that there is a lot of anti-American sentiment within the troops.

And at the same time, there is a lot of public condemnation of the Pakistan army as such, because it is seen as a usurper of power and it’s seen as somebody that is a government-in-waiting that wouldn’t think twice before toppling democratic governments, which they have done in the past, which wouldn’t think twice before--they’re called sometimes — they’re called by hard critics plunderers of this country.

So they have lost that kind of credibility as well. And then to have something like Osama bin Laden found in Abbottabad, this completely made them lose their credibility. And followed just within a month, there was an attack on PNS Navy airbase, which is one of the most sensitive installations.

And just the day before, we heard General Kayani say that, you know, all our nuclear installations are safe. In fact, even before the bin Laden attack, he went to Kakul Academy in Abbottabad and said that we have broken the back of the Taliban. And then comes, emerges Osama bin Laden after Abbottabad.

So the army faces, let’s say, a huge credibility issue. There’s a huge question mark on their credibility at this time. Their image has never taken the kind of beating that it has in the country. And there is a general resentment amongst people against the army, who they see as a self-serving army.

JAY: Tell me about the situation facing journalists in Pakistan. Saleem is certainly not the first journalist to be killed. What is the atmosphere for a working journalist? How is it for you? I mean, you’re speaking quite courageously right now.

MUNIZAE: Well, there are certain no-go areas in our country for journalists. Physically there are no-go areas. There is a whole strip where the war against militancy is being fought where journalists are not allowed to go. If they do go, they’re sent back, you know, dead. Body bags are found.

So we have to tread our way very softly. And if you’re reporting on conflict areas, it becomes very frustrating not to be able to go there. So when we do go there, we are working on the fringes. We go in the mornings; come back, you know, before the sun comes down.

JAY: Saleem was in Islamabad when he was killed.

MUNIZAE: Absolutely. Saleem was in Islamabad when he was killed. But I’m talking about there are threats from all sides. There’s not just threats from intelligence agencies. There’s also threats from the Taliban, there are threats from al-Qaeda, there are threats from criminal gangs, there are threats from — in Karachi, you know, from political parties who have criminal gangs.

We are dealing with various forms of violence in Pakistan. We don’t know who is going to come at us, you know, whose feathers we are going to rub the wrong way. So it’s a very difficult situation for us. We have to be very careful in what — we have to weigh our words very carefully. We have to constantly look back.

And ten of our colleagues have died last year, just last year. And according to international agencies, the media networks are perhaps one of the most dangerous places for journalists to work. But at the same time, this is also a place where you find the stories that you do. And so it gets that kind of media attention as well.

JAY: Now, is there going to be an inquiry? There’s already been calls for a public inquiry. Is there likely to be one? And if there is one, do you think that it’s likely to come to anything?

MUNIZAE: Well, just this evening, the prime minister of Pakistan, Yousaf Raza Gillani, strongly condemned the murder of Saleem Shahzad. And at that time, we had the advisor to the prime minister come on to my show and asked to her the same question: can we expect a clean and a transparent inquiry?

But then I felt almost silly asking her that question, considering that their own leader, Benazir Bhutto, was killed in broad daylight, you know, and by all witness accounts and in front of live television camera, the evidence was washed down, hosed down. They are in government today. They make claims, they say that they know exactly who killed her, and yet they don’t have the strength, the guts to actually bring the perpetrators to justice.

So what hope do I have of Saleem Shahzad killers being brought to justice? I don’t know. If they can’t bring the — you know, they owe everything to that woman. They came into power, you know, on the strength of Benazir Bhutto. But they still can’t find her killers. What hope do we have?

JAY: Thanks very much for joining us, Munizae.

MUNIZAE: Thank you so much.

JAY: Syed Saleem Shahzad left behind his wife and three small children. Everyone at The Real News and on behalf of all our viewers, we send our condolences to the family.


 

 

ISI: Pakistan’s Formidable Force Multiplier:

by VINOD SHARMA at www.centreright.in of 19th AUGUST 2013

One has got to admire Pakistan. Is there any other example in history where a small nation has simultaneously taken on two much bigger countries…….[including] one super power…… that they have created the Inter Services Intelligence [ISI]. This covert arm of the military has been developed and honed……. to become a huge force multiplier that has almost re-written the rules of war……It is this institution alone that has given Pakistan the luxury of playing game on battlefields of its choosing in a manner that it wants, without exposing its troops to danger and its culpability to the enemy…..Pakistan sees ISI as its first line of defence..……for the Pakistani establishment—both military and civil— the ISI is not engaged in any hostile or offensive actions there, like the Americans and the Indians believe.

When the US invaded Afghanistan after 9/11, it probably thought it was going for a stroll in a park bombed flat by it….. it would have….. but it failed to factor in Pakistan’s tenacity…..[then] expanding the war was not an option……the Pakistanis assessed the situation far more accurately than the Americans thought they were capable of…… US is being defeated by a very clever and determined Pakistan. The divided Pashtuns were trounced by the ISI after the Soviets invaded Afghanistan, without a bullet being fired.

Despite the serious challenge posed by the presence and pressure of the Americans in Afghanistan, the ISI has not significantly let up it campaign in Kashmir…..should have made the Indians realise that they are dealing with an exceptionally clever, ruthless and never-say-die leadership…..but, just as the Americans failed to learn the right lessons from what Pakistan was doing to India, the Indians seem to have failed to learn too from it has done to the Americans in Afghanistan…

…that the 26/11 attack[alleged as ‘Bombay Attacks’] was controlled and coordinated by the ISI from start to finish, the sort of information that Pakistan would have twisted with a knife in India’s gut….what did Pakistan do?.....actually demanded that any progress on 26/11 investigations be linked to progress on Siachen, Sir Creek etc. Yet, leading establishment intellectuals like Ram Guha want to mislead India into believing that the ISI is a non-state actor and is no worse than VHP or Bajrang Dal.

India’s own covert operations outfit, rightly named RAW …….has singularly failed to nail the ISI, despite being on this very job for decades, with a huge budget to boot…..This is further proof that the ISI, whose DG reports to the Army Chief, conducts its many dangerous businesses with clinical professionalism, and knows how to keep them under wraps from amateur Indian eyes. [whereas] RAW is a poorly-led-by-police-officers and driven-by-babu-culture set up that lacks the political direction, professionalism, commitment and motivation required facing, tackle and defeat a fanatic force multiplier like the ISI.

……Once Pakistan achieves the primacy it is on its way to in Afghanistan, all but drives India out from there, and makes full use of the infrastructure that India’s much touted ‘soft power’ has created in that country, the ISI’s energies, spurred by its spectacular success in Afghanistan, will focus almost wholly on India.

Does India have a plan to defeat the challenges that it is almost certain to face? ….the way some of our leaders brainlessly dismiss any other option, no matter what Pakistan does, by invoking the fear that Pakistan is a nuclear powered state. Much of the credit for the fact that Pakistan has fearlessly bled India…. given to the one outstanding creation of Pakistan’s military, the ISI. This covert military outfit is an innovative and powerful instrument of war, an invisible and formidable force multiplier.

To counter it, India has not been able to find an answer ….. is unlikely to do so in future too. Much as India’s ineptitude hurt me as an Indian, I have to admire what Pakistan – a nation that is 1/6th India’s size and with 10th India’s GDP – has achieved through the ISI, whose successes have been nothing short of spectacular.

Wish we could learn what it has been trying to teach us.


		
Scenario 92

SALEEM SHAHZAD’s TWO INTERVIEWs

Senior Editor of The Real News Network (TRNN), Paul Jay, called Saleem Shahzad from Washington on 19th & 21st May 2011 asking him about the reaction of Senator John Kerry’s recent visit to Pakistan on a fence - building mission in the backdrop of Osama’s killing and accusing Pakistani military and ISI in that connection AND that why the Pakistani politicians were being pushed into turmoil.

Here is an Interview dated 19th May 2011 of Saleem Shahzad, Pakistan’s Bureau Chief of Asia Times online with Washington based ‘the Real News.com [TTRN] given verbatim:

PAUL JAY [SENIOR EDITOR] of TRNN: Senator John Kerry was in Pakistan on what was called a fence - building mission. Fence building necessary because the US after killing bin Laden [incompre.] accused Pakistani military and Intelligence agencies of being incompetent or, worse, perhaps protecting bin Laden. This has also sent Pakistan politics into quite a bit of turmoil. [Saleem Shahzad is being welcomed to join TTRN]

S SHAHZAD [PAKISTAN BUREAU CHIEF of ASIA TIMES ONLINE]: Thank you.

PAUL JAY: So, first of all, is there any doubt amongst the military, the intelligence agencies, or Pakistan public opinion that it was in fact Osama bin Laden who was killed?

SHAHZAD: Yes, I mean, undoubtedly it was bin Laden who was killed in Pakistan. There is no doubt about that.

JAY: Now, you’ve written extensively over the last few years about a division in the military — I guess the ISI as well, the intelligence service — that before 9/11, people that were very Islamic and very connected to the Taliban in Afghanistan who were very religious were very well promoted in the military and the ISI, and after 9/11, many of them quit in opposition to Musharraf’s alliance with the United States, some were even arrested, and there was a purge of the more senior pro-Islamist elements. But you’ve talked about this division, how some of these retired officers continued to work with mid-level cadre in the army. How are they responding to the killing of bin Laden? And what does this mean for Pakistan’s politics?

SHAHZAD: Well, as far as my understanding is concerned, many of the military officers who had a religious inclination resigned or took their retirement soon after 9/11. Some of them silently sat at their home, but many joined forces with the different militant groups.

I personally interacted with some of the officers who joined Commander Ilyas Kashmiri, who is now the member of al-Qaeda’s shura. And some of those retired army officers were also behind the Mumbai attack in 2008. And, of course, bin Laden’s killing is a big event for them. And they are also assessing the new situation after bin Laden’s killing, and that is a new collaboration between the Pakistani security forces and the US military establishment.

And as you can see in yesterday’s joint statement issued in Islamabad after John Kerry’s visit, that both countries have reiterated that they would launch joint operations against al-Qaeda, new targets. And the security forces — [an] Islamabad security forces official personally told me that it means that now Pakistani forces and the Americans would jointly work to crack high-profile Afghan Taliban leaders and the Pakistani militants and as well as al-Qaeda leaders.

So the thing is that now I can clearly see a disturbance within the Pakistani establishment. And I understand that many of those retired officials, army officials, who’d use their clout inside the Pakistan army and instigate the [incompr.] officers, tried to manipulate them to work with the jihadi forces and instigate the rebellion against the state apparatus.

JAY: To what extent do you think the Pakistan military was simply posturing about not knowing about the attack on bin Laden? I mean, it is hard to conceive that, number one, they didn’t know he was in the house down the road from their military base. It’s also hard to conceive that even the American intelligence agencies wouldn’t have known something. You’ve written before about how much the FBI and some of the other American intelligence agencies have become kind of connected to working very closely with, even sometimes controlling, you’ve written, the Pakistan ISI. What do you think happened here?

SHAHZAD: Well, as far as Osama bin Laden’s hiding cave is concerned, I don’t have any qualified opinion to share with you. But given my interaction and my exposure with some of the retired army officials who were hand-in-glove with the jihadi forces, I can safely guess that it is quite possible that some retired army officers, use their connections to keep Osama bin Laden in Abbottabad, although I’m not sure that he was living over there for the last five years.

I’m not sure about the time period which is mentioned by the Americans. But I think that if he was living in Abbottabad for several months, I think it was not possible without the help and connivance of some of the elements who were directly or indirectly connected with the military establishment.

JAY: Now, the leaders of the army and the intelligence service spoke in Pakistan’s Parliament a little while ago, I guess just a few days ago, in an unprecedented presentation. But you wrote what they said there was essentially riddled with contradictions. What were the contradictions?

SHAHZAD: There were many contradictions. First of all, they vent their anger; they vent their anger against the American strikes inside Abbottabad. But I think that they were very much onboard, they were very much onboard.

As far as my understanding and my information is concerned, Americans did inform them about the arrival of the Navy SEALs inside Pakistan, but they did not share the information that--where they would strike and what is their exact high-value target. The name of the high-value target, that was Osama bin Laden.

So that is very much in line of the previous American tactics in Pakistan. They did send Navy SEALs inside Pakistan in past years, and they did share the information with Pakistan, and Pakistan did back those initiatives. But the thing was that — they made lot of hue and cry about the drone strikes and everything, but immediately after the parliamentary resolution, there were at least two drone strikes inside Pakistan. And there was not even a formal protest by Pakistani military establishment or by the Pakistani foreign office.

JAY: Saleem, I thought you had written that the head of the Air Force, I think, had said to Parliament that you should give us orders to shoot these drones down.

SHAHZAD: That’s true. That’s true. He said, actually, actually, Armed Forces chief tried to take parliamentary cover. But they did not mean that, no. They give the option to the Parliament, and at the same time, they also warn the Parliament that if you allow us and Pakistani Armed Forces would retaliate, we’re waiting for the American reactions, that Americans would also react in the same way--in more harsher way, rather.

So, I mean, they put the option in front of the Parliament, but at the same time, they also warned the Parliament. So it was--I mean, it was a sort of a defective briefing, I must say. So there were a lot of--I mean, the whole of their statement was completely riddled by contradictions.

JAY: Now, the--what exactly is the strength and role of al-Qaeda now in Pakistan? You hear everything from there’s, like, 50 al-Qaeda fighters left and they really don’t play much of a role. On the other side of it, you hear that al-Qaeda’s actually reborn itself, has new leadership, and has a very close connection with the Taliban. Where is the truth in this as you know it?

SHAHZAD: There are two aspects. Number one, there are--first you have to understand this fact, that there are 17 Arab-Afghan groups which are operating inside Pakistani tribal areas and in Afghanistan, and most of the groups are allied with al-Qaeda, but they are not part of al-Qaeda. They have alliance with al-Qaeda, but they are not a part of al-Qaeda, number one. And the strength of those 17 Arab-Afghan groups is, like, over 1,000, approximately.

Second, those who are the members of al-Qaeda are hardly, like, 100, not more than 100.

The third thing is--and this is the most important thing, and that is the phenomenon of neo-Taliban, the new generation of those Afghan fighters, of the Pakistani fighters, or the fighters coming from the Pakistani tribal areas who were--previously pledged their allegiance to Mullah Omar and the Taliban.

But now they--in the last ten years, they completely absorbed al-Qaeda’s ideology inside-out, and they are more loyal to al-Qaeda than Mullah Omar or to the al-Qaeda leaders or to their jihadi commanders. So this is the new group, this al-Qaeda horizontally, not only in Pakistan, Afghanistan, and the tribal areas, but all across the globe, like in Yemen, in Somalia, and other parts, even in America.

So this is the new generation, on which al-Qaeda is heavily banking on. And not only those, but it also includes the new converts, white Caucasians, which are living in North Waziristan and in South Waziristan. And many of them were sent back to their countries of origin in Europe, Canada, and America, and different countries. So this was completely a new phenomenon. Al-Qaeda grew horizontally in different directions.

JAY: Now, al-Qaeda’s relationship and the Taliban’s relationship with the ISI and the Pakistan military has also been a matter of great debate. Many people have suggested that there’s kind of a dual policy going on, that the Taliban at the very least, if not al-Qaeda, but the Taliban, are a sort of a lever, a card that Pakistan gets to play in Afghanistan.

And there’s also been talk about this split, the Pakistan Taliban versus the Afghan Taliban, that the Afghan Taliban are focused on Afghanistan, and they have the links with the Pakistan military. But the Pakistani Taliban is closer to al-Qaeda, and they’re more targeted at overthrowing the Pakistan regime itself. So what do you make of that?

SHAHZAD: Over the last ten years, things have become very complicated. You cannot say that in any categorical terms, that Afghan Taliban are the same person as the Pakistani establishment. Yes, part of Afghan Taliban is still in contact with the military establishment, but all their top commanders, all the top commanders of Taliban, Afghan Taliban, are now completely in the hands of al-Qaeda.

For example, the biggest Taliban Afghan commander is Sirajuddin Haqqani. He is very close to al-Qaeda. Similarly, Commander Nazir who runs the largest anti-NATO, anti-Western coalition network in Afghan province of Paktika--he has also influence in the Afghan province of Zabul and Helmand-- is completely part of al-Qaeda.

People say that he is Afghan Taliban. He is very close to the military establishment. But when recently I interviewed him, he said to me in categorical terms that “I am part of al-Qaeda,” and he — and his very close lieutenant handed me check in which it was written that anybody who would be friendly with Pakistan would be considered as Taliban and al-Qaeda’s foe.

So that actually showed that the currents have completely changed in the last ten years. Asia has completely changed in the last ten years.

JAY: Thanks very much for joining us Syed and we will continue to do this conversation in Part 2 of this interview and please join us for that on The Real News Network.

The second stint of that Interview dated 21st May 2011 of Saleem Shahzad with Washington based ‘the Real News.com [TTRN] is given below verbatim:

PAUL JAY: Based partly on what you’ve written, it seems that the more pressure the US puts on the Pakistan army to participate in the Afghan war and to deal with the al-Qaeda Taliban elements, the more it splits the army. How serious a division is there?

SHAHZAD: There are several dimensions of this split. Number one, you have to appreciate the Pakistani military establishment supported the Taliban regime for the last--for five years from the middle to late ‘90s and early 2000. So the thing is that they not only supported the Taliban regime but they had also some agreements with the Taliban. And they had even the agreements with al-Qaeda before 9/11.

JAY: In some of your articles you have mentioned the possibilities of even a kind of mutiny. Is that possible now?

SHAHZAD: Well, it is quite possible. And if you remember, immediately after the 9/11, there were several attacks on then chief of the army staff and the president, Mr. Pervez Musharraf. And each of those attacks, there was a connection of Pakistani Armed Forces. In some cases there were southern Pakistan Air Force officials were involved. So you just cannot set aside the element of a limited mutiny in Pakistan army.

There would certainly be a backlash, because you have to appreciate this fact, that Pakistan army has always been closely allied with Islamist forces. They had agreements with the Taliban in the past when they were ruling Afghanistan, and they had even agreements with al-Qaeda when they were living in Afghanistan under the Taliban regime.

They had, even, agreement with al-Qaeda, when Lieutenant General Mahmud, of the ISI, visited Kandahar after 9/11, and he met with the Taliban government. And he verbally assured Osama bin Laden that Pakistan would not mount any operation against al-Qaeda, they would not try to arrest them, and al-Qaeda would not, you know, retaliate against Pakistan, either.

So, under the same very agreement, you know, Osama bin Laden and all the top al-Qaeda members were allowed to sneak inside Pakistan. And the crackdowns have mounted only in 2003, when Pakistani intelligence wrongly reported to General Pervez Musharraf that al-Qaeda was behind the attack on his motorcade in 2003.

As a reaction, then Musharraf ordered a crackdown against al-Qaeda and all the jihadi organizations. And then, I mean, of course al-Qaeda also retaliated against the Pakistani military establishment and against Pervez Musharraf. So the thing is that the element of a limited revolt or mutiny within the Pakistan army is there, and you just cannot, you know, ignore that.

JAY: Now, how have the broader sections of Pakistani public opinion reacted to the killing of bin Laden and what’s going on in terms of the controversy with the military and the ISI? I mean, what do--I know there’s no such thing as most Pakistanis, but in terms of the sort of majority of urban Pakistan public opinion, you could say, what do they think?

SHAHZAD: The majority population of urban Pakistan are completely disillusioned with the Pakistani military establishment. They are least bothered about anti-Americanism. They are least bothered about al-Qaedaism. They are least bothered about Pakistan’s military role. But they do bother about two, three things. One is the economic meltdown in the whole country, the economic crisis in the country.

They do bother about and they do concern about--on the question of Pakistan sovereignty, which is under siege from all sides, not only from the American side, but also from the militant side.

I mean, they are very much concerned that Pakistan has turned into a proxy battleground by all sorts of forces, not only from the al-Qaeda side and the American side, but also Iranians and the Saudis are very active inside Pakistan, and they are paying money to different groups in different militant outfits to settle the score against each other.

So the thing is, they are completely disillusioned with everybody, and they are looking for some new leaders who would, you know, take the country out of the crisis, of economic crisis, of the political crisis.

And the issue — and the identity crisis. Pakistan’s identity crisis that what the Pakistan is really up to. Is it a republic? Is it an Islamic Republic? Is it democratic state? Or what? So they are actually--they’re completely disillusioned with the situation.

JAY: Now, just let me ask you one final question, which I haven’t asked you before. The 9/11 attacks themselves, if in fact they were organized from bin Laden and al-Qaeda, and he was in Afghanistan but he was closely tied to at least elements, if not important sections, of the leadership of the Pakistan military and intelligence, clearly bin Laden was closely connected with sections of the Saudi royal family. Has there ever been an inquiry or a call for an inquiry into what was behind 9/11 and whether or not Pakistan or Saudi intelligence played any role in it?

SHAHZAD: You have to appreciate two things when you would investigate the 9/11 plot. Number one, the broader ideas.

The broader ideas actually came from Dr. Ayman al-Zawahiri, who actually wanted a friction between the West and the Muslim world on very broad lines. And for that, he actually wanted a flashpoint to be created.

And the second element was Khalid Sheikh Mohammed. Khalid Sheikh Mohammed was not al-Qaeda’s member. He was a standalone jihadi. And he came up with this idea of 9/11. And then he proposed that idea to Dr. Ayman al-Zawahiri and Osama bin Laden. Ayman al-Zawahiri was the most happy person.

And if you study Dr. Ayman al-Zawahiri’s personality, you would be knowing that he is a silent manipulator. He cunningly manipulated Osama bin Laden’s mind, and that way he made sure that 9/11, like, even would happen in America, but because it would guarantee a massive friction in the world, and massive polarization in the world, and would divide the world on ideological lines, and that is what he was precisely looking for.

So I don’t think that there is any question of the Saudi involvement, Saudi establishment’s involvement or the Pakistani military establishment involvement. No matter how close they were to the Taliban or Osama bin Laden or any other personality — even Osama bin Laden was very well manipulated by Dr. Ayman al-Zawahiri.

JAY: There certainly was some evidence of connections between the Saudi royal family. There was a document from a congressional investigation that the LA Times reported on, that there were at least individual members of the Saudi royal family that have helped to finance certain members of the 9/11 participants. Has this ever been actually investigated or looked into within Pakistan? Because as you’ve--you’ve reported yourself that the ISI and military had very close connections with al-Qaeda before 9/11.

SHAHZAD: There were proofs; there were evidence of financial linkages between the Taliban and al-Qaeda and the Saudi royal family, and even within the Pakistani military establishment. But, actually, those linkages were presented larger than the life.

Most of that financial assistance was meant for the NGOs which were operating in Afghanistan. And several royal family members donated the funds to those NGOs. But it was presented in a different light, in a different angle, as the royal family donated the money, royal family members donated the money to al-Qaeda for launching 9/11 operation.

So that was — I don’t, you know, give much break to those evidences. Al-Qaeda is completely an anti-establishment and anti-state element. And this is the same for the whole world. Al-Qaeda is not loyal to any single state of the world. So I don’t subscribe, actually.

JAY: Okay. Just one thing, finally, then. The Americans have positioned the death of bin Laden as a possible opening for negotiations with the Taliban, that now the Taliban can separate itself from al-Qaeda and there’s some kind of a process that can now be negotiated. Do you think there’s any merit to that argument?

SHAHZAD: I don’t think so. I don’t think so. They are grieving, actually. Number one, they underestimated the--or you can say they have wrongly interpreted Taliban’s sentiments. Taliban, whether they are different from al-Qaeda or they have differences from al-Qaeda on strategy and may be on the ideology, but they are very courteous people.

And since Americans have assassinated Osama bin Laden, this is no occasion for the Taliban that they would ditch al-Qaeda and they would switch to Americans. It is quite possible that after five, six years, after many years, they would behave differently. But on this particular occasion, on this particular occasion, I don’t think that Taliban would behave in a friendly way towards Americans. I don’t think so.

JAY: Alright. Thanks very much for joining us, Saleem.

SHAHZAD: My pleasure.

JAY: And thank you for joining us on The Real News Network.

SALEEM SHAHZAD KILLED:

Investigative journalist Saleem Shahzad was abducted on 29th May 2011 from Islamabad while going from home to the TV station in his own car. He was taken away two days after his story on ‘infiltration of al Qaeda into the Pakistan Navy’ had been published in all the media sections.

On 31st May 2011, his tortured dead body was found lying in a canal near Sara e Alamgir, a place about 120 km away from Islamabad. Nearby, the police found a white Toyota Corolla that had been abandoned by the canal, in the shade of a banyan tree. The police discovered that the car belonged to Shahzad; its doors were locked, and there was no trace of blood. There were voices that the agencies had kidnapped him and beaten to death; which was subsequently never proved.

Saleem Shahzad, the missing journalist, was abducted by un-known people from the busy F-6/2 area of Islamabad around 5:45 pm. At the time, he was on his way to the studios of Pakistan’s Dunya News channel to discuss the contents of his latest report about the naval-base attack. On his way, Shahzad had responded to a call from a producer at Dunya News and said he was on his way; but Shahzad’s phone went dead twelve minutes later.

Saleem Shahzad was killed and some people declared it as Al-Qaeda or Taliban’s job but they did not make demands of ransom in return for his release, nor did they claim credit for his assassination. In fact, no terror group or NGO or agency had claimed responsibility for Shahzad’s murder.

Daily ‘the Telegraph’ of 31st May 2011 had added that:

‘He [Saleem Shahzad] had been contacted by the agencies and the media groups last year after writing that Pakistan had released Mullah Baradar, who was second-in-command of the Afghan Taliban until he was detained in Karachi.’

The background of the above mention event remains that on 17th October 2010, Saleem Shahzad was summoned to the ISI HQ to discuss the contents of an article published the day before with two officials from the agency’s media wing. That report, published in Asia Times Online, alleged that Pakistan had quietly released Afghan Taliban commander Mullah Baradar, Mullah Omar’s deputy, to take part in talks through the Pakistan army. One of the officials of ‘that intelligence agency’ told Shahzad they had recently arrested a terrorist and recovered a lot of data, diaries and other material during the interrogation. The terrorist had a list with him but if they found his [S Shahzad’s] name in the list, they would certainly let him know.

Incidentally, the two ISI officials present at the meeting, Rear Admiral Adnan Nawaz and Commodore Khalid Pervaiz, were both from the navy. Commodore Pervaiz was then appointed as the new commander of the Karachi naval base that was attacked.

The meeting was held in an extremely polite and friendly atmosphere and no words were minced. During the conversation, however, Shahzad told the officers that he got the information [regarding attack on the Naval Base Karachi] from an intelligence official and later confirmed the story from ‘the most credible Taliban source’.

Referring to ‘the News’ dated 4th June 2011; Babar Sattar, an advocate by profession but a free lancing essay contributor to the print media, was also called by the agencies to know the background of an article ‘reforming khakis’ penned doen by him. In his article he had written on multiple aspects of the army commands including:

‘…….mainly about an undaunted sense of righteousness felt by the military with the belief that its vision and definition of national security and national interest is the perennial manifestation of wisdom and truth.

And that the Civilians have no authority to talk about national security, if doing so, would be termed as interference.’

During his meeting with officials of the ISI’s Information Management Wing Babar Sattar was told that “it is part of the Wing’s mandate to remain in touch with the journalist community…the main objective behind all such interactions is provision of accurate information on matters of national security.”

The citizens at large had been questioning ‘Pakistan’s National Security Policy’ because they worry about the direction in which it was pushing this country. Mr Sattar believed that:

‘It is not allegiance to an enemy but the love for their homeland and concern for their future, and that of their kids that motivates them to demand course correction.’

Coming back to Saleem Shahzad account, ‘The New Yorker’ dated 19th September 2011 remarked later:

‘A hallmark of Shahzad’s reporting was that it frequently featured interviews with Islamist militants, including Al Qaeda fighters. His work was sometimes inaccurate…

Perhaps because he had cultivated so many militants as sources, he occasionally seemed to glorify the men who were carrying out suicide bombings and assassinations.

In 2009, he published a breathless account of a meeting with Ilyas Kashmiri, a top Al Qaeda leader. Shahzad noted that the terrorist ……

At times, he seemed to spare the intelligence services from the most damning details; but on several important occasions—as in the case of the Mehran attack—he wrote what appeared to be undiluted truth about the Pakistani state’s deepest dilemmas.’

It has been on the record since a decade that most of the terrorist activities on Pak-Afghan borders, in the far off places of Balochistan and inside Karachi city were found linked with the India-sponsored NGOs. All the recoveries of illegal weapons, arsenals, automated guns, 9mm revolvers and the bombing gadgets were invariably marked made either in USA or in India – why so. Yet the civil governments in succession, especially the PML(N), were always seen keen to establish business ties with India.

Once the PML(N) was bent upon allocating the title of ‘Most Favoured Nation’ [MFN] to India, it was the army establishment which came in between with the statistics of atrocities in hand, which Pakistan suffered through its ‘beloved neighbour’. The civil government had no answer.

Recall the famous academic perception also that ‘the next war with India is ahead due to Kashmir or over the Water Resources.’

JUDICIAL COMMISSION ON SS MURDER:

On 13th January 2012, the Judicial Commission comprised of Justice Mian Saqib Nisar, Justice Agha Rafiq Ahmed Khan, Javed Iqbal [IG Police Punjab], Binyamin Khan [IG Police Islamabad], and Pervaiz Shaukat [PFUJ’s President] finalized its report in seven months after interviews of 41 individuals in 31 formal meetings.

[The media & journalists believed that the Commission’s Chairman Justice Saqib Nisar lacked credibility. The government appointed him and the CJP endorsed him. He was once alleged for writing one of the most controversial judgments in Pakistan’s legal history; Mukhtaran Mai Case. CJ Iftikhar Chaudhry himself claimed that the issue could be resolved in four days.]

‘Business as usual’ was the main decree what the Judicial Commission, formed to investigate slain journalist Saleem Shahzad’s murder case, concluded at the end. Saleem Shahzad was allegedly receiving death threats from various terrorist groups for his investigation spree but mostly for stepping out his domain and, above all, on the charges of passing on one groups’ secret information to the other rival faction.

The 140-page report had recommended the PM Gilani to make the report public while making its due observations. The Judicial Commission wrote a very interesting and sarcastic conclusive sentence in its final report that:

‘It seems that Saleem Shahzad committed self-torture and suicide and later his dead body drove a car to the canal and dumped itself there.

The commission found no involvement of any security agency, including the ISI, in the killing of the journalist. Moreover, none of the journalists interviewed gave any evidence or shared information about the involvement of agencies. No one even blamed any intelligence agency of involvement.’

The Commission further directed the Islamabad and Punjab police departments to continue their respective investigation process to identify the perpetrators of the crime. Numerable media reports of next day commented that the Judicial Commission had made a mockery of justice. ‘The commission, despite its clear mandate, failed miserably and disappointed all’, the media mainly held.

The matter had touched the boundaries of sentiments in fact. The people at large and especially the media wanted to hear the JC’s version as per their perceptions. They wanted to hear the outcome as the country’s intelligence agencies had murdered Saleem Shahzad. The fact remained that no judge would ever give judgment on the basis of media reports or the hearsay among the general public. Here too, the JC members needed convincing evidence of some body’s involvement, individual or intelligence agency or terrorist group.
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